






1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



 

 

 

 

 

 

DBE Program Plan Attachments 

 

Attachment 7:  Procedures for Removal of DBE’s Eligibility  

 

 

 

 

 

75



 

 

Removal of DBE/ACDBE Eligibility (Decertification)  
All Members of the TUCP, including the Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority (CCRTA) follow the Texas Unified Certification 
Program (TUCP) Standard Operating Procedures, which includes the process of removing a DBE/ACDBE Eligibility (Decertification). 

 

1. INITIAL DENIAL OF DBE/ACDBE CERTIFICATION  

a. A firm will be notified in writing by the Certifying Partner that it has been 
denied DBE/ACDBE certification by the TUCP. 

b. The firm will be provided with a written explanation of the reasons for denial, 
specifically referencing the evidence in the record that supports each reason 
for the denial. 

c. All documents and information used to render a determination of denial will 
be made available for inspection by the applicant, upon written request to the 
Certifying Partner. 

d. A firm that is denied DBE/ACDBE certification may not apply for certification 
with the TUCP for a period of one year (12 months). 

e. A firm denied DBE/ACDBE certification may appeal the denial of DBE/ACDBE 
certification to the USDOT in accordance with §26.89 of the regulation.  
 

2. REMOVAL OF DBE/ACDBE ELIGIBILITY (DECERTIFICATION)  

a. The TUCP members agree to follow the eligibility removal procedures set forth 
in 49 CFR §26.87 including:  
 

i. Ineligibility complaints: Any person, including another TUCP member, 
may file a written complaint alleging that a currently-certified firm is 
ineligible and specifying the alleged reason(s) why the firm is ineligible 
within 90 days. 

ii. Recipient initiated proceedings: If a direct recipient of federal funds 
determines that there is reasonable cause to believe that a currently 
certified firm is ineligible based on notification by that DBE/ACDBE 
firm of a change in its circumstances or any other information that 
becomes available, they must provide written notice to the firm that it 
proposes to find them ineligible for the DBE/ACDBE program setting 
forth the reasons for the proposed determination. The statement of 
reasons for the finding of reasonable cause must specifically reference 
the evidence in the record on which each reason is based. 

iii. DOT directive to initiate proceeding: If the concerned operating 
administration (FHWA, FTA, FAA) determines that information in your 
certification records, or other information available to the concerned 
operating administration, provides reasonable cause to believe that a 
firm you certified does not meet the eligibility criteria of this part, the 
concerned operating administration may direct you to initiate a 
proceeding to remove the firm's certification. 

76



 

 

iv. When a firm is notified that there is reasonable cause to remove its 
eligibility, as provided in paragraph (a), (b), or (c) of this section, it will 
be provided the opportunity for an informal hearing, at which the firm 
may respond to the reasons for the proposal to remove its eligibility in 
person and provide information and arguments concerning why it 
should remain certified. 

v. A DBE/ACDBE firm whose eligibility has been removed (decertified) 
for any of the following reasons will be afforded an Appeal Process as 
stated in Section M: 

1. The business has changed to the extent that it is no longer 
owned or controlled by socially and economically 
disadvantaged individual(s). 

2. The DBE/ACDBE firm is no longer an ongoing business entity. 
3. The socially and economically disadvantaged owners falsified a 

sworn statement. This action may also result in more punitive 
action such as debarment. 

4. The DBE/ACDBE fails to notify the TUCP Certifying Partner, 
within 30 days, of changes in ownership, control, independence 
or status as an ongoing concern. 

5. A determination by the TUCP Certifying Partner that the firm no 
longer meets certification eligibility standards. 

6. The DBE/ACDBE exhibits a pattern of conduct indicating its 
involvement in attempts to evade or subvert the intent or 
requirement of the regulations. This action may also result in 
more punitive action such as debarment. 

vi. Decertified firms shall be removed from the TUCP directory. 

vii. A firm decertified for cause may not apply again for DBE/ACDBE 
certification with the TUCP for a period of one year (12 months). A firm 
that is decertified for not submitting an Annual Affidavit (failure to 
cooperate clause) may reapply for DBE/ACDBE certification after a six 
(6) month waiting period from the date of decertification. 
 

3. APPEAL PROCESS 

a. Initial Denials 

i. A firm denied DBE/ACDBE certification may appeal the denial of 
DBE/ACDBE certification to the United States Department of 
Transportation (USDOT) in accordance with §26.89 of the regulation. 
Such appeal must be filed within ninety (90) days of the date of the 
determination letter. 

ii. Pending a determination by USDOT, the decision rendered by the 
Certifying Partner remains in effect for the TUCP. Upon notification by 
USDOT, the TUCP Certifying Partner will forward a copy of the 
complete administrative record for review with in fifteen (15) business 
days. 

77



 

 

iii. All appeal decisions rendered by USDOT are administratively final and 
are not subject to petitions for reconsideration. 

iv. A firm that is denied DBE/ACDBE certification may not again apply for 
certification with the TUCP for a period of one year (12 months). 
 

b. Removal of Certification  

i. Any firm that was certified under 49 CFR Part 23 and Part 26 and has 
had their certification proposed to be removed may file a written 
rebuttal or appear in person at an informal hearing. 

ii. All requests for an informal hearing must be filed with the TUCP 
Certifying Partner responsible for the removal of DBE/ACDBE 
certification. The firm will have the opportunity to present information 
in person or in writing to the certifying TUCP Partner and all aspects of 
the hearing shall be coordinated by the TUCP Certifying Partner. 

iii. The TUCP Certifying Partner must maintain a complete record of the 
hearing, by a means acceptable under State law for the retention of a 
verbatim record of an Administrative Hearing. 

iv. Separations of Functions: The TUCP Certifying Partner must ensure 
that the decision in a proceeding to remove a firm’s eligibility 
(decertification) is made by office and personnel that did not take part 
in actions leading to or seeking to implement the proposal to remove 
the firm’s eligibility and are not subject, with respect to the matter, to 
direction from the office or personnel who did take part in these 
actions. 

v. Any firm may appeal directly to the United States Department of 
Transportation (USDOT). Such appeal must be filed within 90 days of 
the date of the denial letter from the Certifying Partner. 

vi. Pending a determination by the USDOT, the decision rendered by the 
TUCP Certifying Partner remains in effect for the TUCP. 

vii. Upon notification by USDOT, the TUCP Certifying Partner will forward 
a copy of the complete administrative record for review. USDOT will 
make a determination based solely on the administrative record. 

viii. USDOT will provide written notice of its decision to the TUCP and the 
appellant. 

ix. It is the policy of USDOT to make its determination within 180 days of 
receiving the complete administrative record. If a determination is not 
made within this period, USDOT will provide written notice to the 
parties explaining the reason for the delay and a date by which the 
appeal decision will be made. 

x. All appeal decisions rendered by the USDOT are administratively final 
and are not subject to petitions for reconsideration. 
 

78



 

 

4. DECERTIFICATION PROCEDURES (3RD PARTY CERTIFICATION CHALLENGES) 

a. In compliance with §26.87 the TUCP Certifying Partners shall accept written 
complaints from any entity alleging that a currently certified DBE/ACDBE firm 
is ineligible. 

b. The complainant must state the specific reasons for the challenge and submit 
documentation in support of the complaint. The complainant’s identity shall 
be protected as provided for in §26.109 (b). 

c. The challenged firm shall be notified, in writing, by the original TUCP 
Certifying Partner within five (5) business days of the challenge, the basis for 
the challenge and the relevant regulations.  

d. The TUCP Certifying Partner responsible for the original certification shall 
thoroughly investigate the complaint within a reasonable time not to exceed 
sixty (60) days. 

e. A TUCP Certifying Partner may accompany and or conduct an investigation 
when a complaint is filed by another certifying partner. The TUCP Partner who 
receives the certification challenge has fifteen (15) days to respond in writing 
indicating the certification decision or indicate wishes for the challenger to 
proceed with the eligibility review. In cases where another TUCP 3rd Party has 
conducted the eligibility review, that TUCP Partner shall be responsible for all 
administrative procedures associated with the decertification process. 

f. When TUCP Certifying Partners cannot reach a consensus regarding the 
eligibility of a DBE/ACDBE certification as a result of an investigation, the 
information will be forwarded to an independent certifying partner or to 
FHWA-Texas Division for a final determination. 

g. The TUCP Certifying Partner shall notify the challenged firm in writing via 
certified mail of the preliminary findings of the complaint. 

h. The challenged firm may request reconsideration in writing, of the intent to 
remove certification eligibility, within fifteen (15) days of the date of the 
notice. 

i. The request for an appeal must be made to the investigating TUCP Certifying 
Partner and must indicate whether the firm wishes to file a written appeal or 
appear in person for a hearing to be conducted by the certifying entity. 

j. USDOT may also notify the TUCP of reasonable cause to find a certified 
DBE/ACDBE firm to be ineligible. In such cases, the TUCP shall without delay 
begin a proceeding to determine whether the firm’s eligibility should be 
removed, as provided in §26.87. 
 

 

79



80



81



CORPUS CHRISTI REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
OPERATIONS & CAPITAL PROJECTS COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

WEDNESDAY, October 25, 2023 

Summary of Actions 

1. Roll Call
2. Heard Safety Briefing
3. Receipt of Conflict of Interest Affidavits – None Received
4. Provided Opportunity for Public Comment – None Received
5. Approved the Operations & Capital Projects Committee Meeting Minutes of

September 27, 2023
6. Approved to Recommend the Board of Directors Approve the Fiscal Year

2024 Holidays and Service Levels
7. Approved to Recommend the Board of Directors Authorize the Chief

Executive Officer (CEO) or Designee to Award a Contract to Pinnacle
Petroleum Inc. for Unleaded Fuel Supply

8. Approved to Recommend the Board of Directors Authorize the Chief
Executive Officer (CEO) or Designee to Award a Contract to Pinnacle
Petroleum Inc. for Unleaded Fuel Supply

9. Heard Committee Chair Report
10. Adjournment

The Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority Board of Directors met at 8:30 a.m. 
in the Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority Staples Street Center facility 
located at 602 N. Staples Street, 2nd Floor Board Room Corpus Christi, Texas. 

Call to Order & Roll Call 
Gabi Canales, Acting Committee Chair on behalf of Committee Chair Eloy Salazar, called 
the meeting to order at 9:20 a.m. Ms. Marisa Montiel called roll and stated a quorum was 
present. 

Board Members Present   
Eloy Salazar (virtual), Gabi Canales, Armando Gonzalez and Erica Maymi. Dan 
Leyendecker (virtual). 

Board Members Absent 
Beatriz Charo 

Staff Present  
David Chapa, Angelina Gaitan, John Esparza, Derrick Majchszak, Sharon Montez, 
Marisa Montiel, Rita Patrick and Miguel Rendón. Tim Van Zalen, MV Transportation. 

Public Present 
None 

1



Safety Briefing 
Mr. Miguel Rendón, Deputy CEO, gave the safety briefing to the audience and Board of 
Directors. He asked that in the event of an emergency, the audience exit the boardroom 
to his left and proceed towards the west stairwell to the first floor where they will exit 
through the westside doors. Once outside, everyone will go to the clocktower adjacent to 
the transfer station. He instructed to not use the elevator during an emergency and to not 
return until the all-clear is given. If a shelter-in-place is needed, this will be done in the 
westside stairwell.   

Receive Conflict of Interest Affidavits 
None Received 

Opportunity for Public Comment 
None Received 

Discussion and Possible Action to Approve the Operations & Capital Projects 
Committee Meeting Minutes of September 27, 2023 

DIRECTOR ARMANDO GONZALEZ MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE 
THE OPERATIONS & CAPITAL PROJECTS COMMITTEE MEETING 
MINUTES OF OCTOBER 25, 2023.   DIRECTOR ERICA MAYMI SECONDED 
THE MOTION. SALAZAR, CANALES, GONZALEZ AND MAYMI VOTING IN 
FAVOR.  ABSENT CHARO. 

Discussion and Possible Action to Recommend the Board of Directors Approve the 
Fiscal Year 2024 Holidays and Service Levels  
Mr. Gordon Robinson, Managing Director of Operations, presented the item noting the 
Board Priority is Public Image and Transparency. He provided background information 
noting that each year, Service Standards require Board of Directors approval of holiday 
and service levels on or near holiday dates. For FY2024, proposed holidays and service 
levels are determined by executive management, historic ridership date and public input. 
Mr. Robinson displayed the FY2024 Proposed Holidays and Service Levels for review. 

DIRECTOR ERICA MAYMI MADE A MOTION TO RECOMMEND THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS APPROVE THE FISCAL YEAR 2024 HOLIDAYS 
AND SERVICES LEVELS.   DIRECTOR ARMANDO GONZALEZ 
SECONDED THE MOTION. SALAZAR, CANALES, GONZALEZ AND 
MAYMI VOTING IN FAVOR.  ABSENT CHARO. 

Discussion and Possible Action to Recommend the Board of Directors Authorize 
the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) or Designee to Award a Contract to Pinnacle 
Petroleum Inc. for Unleaded Fuel Supply  
Mr. Gordon Robinson presented the item noting the Board Priority is Public Image and 
Transparency. He provided background noting there are 36 maintenance, security, 
supervisor and other support vehicles, four cutaway vans utilized by Port Aransas and 29 

2



ARBOC cutaway vans delivered in 2021. The current contract is a two-year base contract 
with a one-year option. The incumbent did not agree to exercise one year option. The 
new contract will be for a two (2) year base term. The unleaded fuel supply agreement 
ensures product availability, more predictable pricing, Oil Price Information Service 
(OPIS) and discounts or mark-ups. A total of six bids were received and three were 
deemed responsive. Mr. Robinson displayed a chart comparing the bids. There is no DBE 
requirement for the procurement. Total expenditures will be determined by consumption 
and OPIS and funds have been accounted for in the Board approved annual operating 
budgets. The total estimated cost for 2024 is $560,373.00 and for 2025 is $599,597.00. 

DIRECTOR ELOY SALAZAR MADE A MOTION TO RECOMMEND THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AUTHORIZE THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
(CEO) OR DESIGNEE TO AWARD A CONTRACT TO PINNACLE 
PETROLEUM INC. FOR UNLEADED FUEL SUPPLY.   DIRECTOR 
ARMANDO GONZALEZ SECONDED THE MOTION. SALAZAR, CANALES, 
GONZALEZ AND MAYMI VOTING IN FAVOR.  ABSENT CHARO. 

Discussion and Possible Action to Recommend the Board of Directors Authorize 
the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) or Designee to Award the Transportation 
Department Uniform Supplier Contract to Cintas Corporation  
Mr. Gordon Robinson presented the item noting the Board Priority is Transparency. He 
provided background information noting uniforms are used to maintain a consistent and 
professional image. Uniform components require replacement to ensure proper 
representation of frontline employees. For 2024, the transportation staff breakdown 
consists of 110 total Bus Operator positions and 19 total administrative positions. CCRTA 
currently purchases uniforms from Cintas Corporation and the current contract will expire 
December 31, 2023. Three proposals were received, of which two were deemed 
responsive. A chart was displayed comparing the two bids. Next, he displayed a chart of 
possible items that could be purchased with the current allowance of $295 per eligible 
employee. The estimated amount for 2024 is $43,955.00 with a projected three-year cost 
of $137,952.50 which includes 5% escalation per year. Director Canales asked if the 
quality was pretty similar between the two bidders. Mr. Majchszak noted the quality was 
similar and Cintas is has a local office. Director Canales asked if in the future the budget 
could be looked into to see if it needs to be raised. Mr. Majchszak said yes the example 
provided was just a sample of what the employees could purchase but throughout the 
year, other items are provided to them at no cost to them. 

DIRECTOR ERICA MAYMI MADE A MOTION TO RECOMMEND THE 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AUTHORIZE THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
(CEO) OR DESIGNEE TO AWARD THE TRANSPORTATION 
DEPARTMENT UNIFORM SUPPLIER CONTRACT TO CINTAS 
CORPORATION.   DIRECTOR ARMANDO GONZALEZ SECONDED THE 
MOTION. SALAZAR, CANALES, GONZALEZ AND MAYMI VOTING IN 
FAVOR.  ABSENT CHARO. 

3



Heard Committee Chair Report 
Mr. Eloy Salazar noted that on the Zoom it was very difficult to hear the presenters at the 
podium and he hopes in the future the problem is resolved.  

Adjournment 
Adjourned at 9:44 a.m.        Submitted by:   Marisa Montiel 

4



5



6



7



8


	ADPF987.tmp
	Summary of Actions




